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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

The Honorable Bill Robertson, Mayor, and the Members of the Board of Aldermen City of Minden, Louisiana 

MEMBERS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS S(~"-.IE-P( OF LOUIStANA CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business- type activities, each major fired, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Minden, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2003, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the City of Minden, Louisiana's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these f'maneial statements based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the f'mancial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall f'maneial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, ilx all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Minden, Louisiana, as of September 30, 2003, and the respective changes in financial position cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
As discussed in Note 1, the City has implemented a new financial reporting model, as required by the provisions of GASB Statement No. 34 Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments as of September 30, 2003 



The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 10 and 26 through 29, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 
Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City of Minden, Louisiana basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and the accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of State, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basie financial statements taken as a whole. 
In accordance with we have also issued a report dated February 23 2004, on our consideration of the City of Minden, Lonisiana's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, eonlxacts and grants. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit. 

/ Minden, Louisiana February 23, 2004 



CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Management's Discussion and Analysis As of for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 (Unaudited) 
Our discussion and analysis of the City of Minden, Louisiana's financial performance provides an overview of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003. Please read it in conjunction with the City's financial statements, which begin on page 12. USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 
This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities (on pages 12-13) provide information about the activities of the City as a whole and present a longer-term view of the City's finances. Fund financial statements start on page 14. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these serviees were fmanced in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the City's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the City's most significant funds. The remaining statements provide financial information about activities for which the City acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside the government. Reporting the City as a Whole Our analysis of the City as a whole begins on page 12. One of the most important questions asked about the City's finances is, "Is the City as a whole better offor worse offas a result of the year's activities?" The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. These two statements report the City's net assets and changes in them. You can think of the City's net assets--the difference between assets and liabilities---as one way to measure the City's financial health, orfinancialposition. Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes in the City's property tax base and the condition of the City's roads, to assess the overall health of the City. In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into two kinds of activities: Governmental activities -Most of the City's basle services are reported here, including the police, fire, public works, parks and recreation, sanitation and health, highway and streets, and general administration. Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise fees, and state and federal grants finance most of these activities. Business-type activities - The City charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of the cost of certain services it provides. The City's water, sewer, and electrical systems are reported here. 



CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Management's Discussion and Analysis As of for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 (Unaudited) 
Reporting the City's Most Significant Funds Our analysis of the City's major funds begins on page 14. The fund financial statements begin on page 14 and provide detailed information about the most significant funds-not the City as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants. However, the City Council establishes many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes (like the Capital Improvement- Street Fund) or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants and other money (sales taxes with restricted for specific use). The City's two kinds of funds - governmental and proprietary - use different accounting approaches. Governmental funds - Most of the City's basic services are reported in governmental which focus on hew money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City's general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer fmancial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City's programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in a reconciliation following the fund financial statements. Proprietary funds - When the City charges customers for the services it provides - whether to outside customers or to other units of the City - these services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. In fact, the City's enterprise funds (a component of proprietary funds) are the same as the business-type activities we report in the government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds. We use internal service funds (the other component of proprietary funds) to report activities that provide supplies and services for the City's other programs and activities-such as the Employee Benefit Plan Fund. The City as Trustee The City is the trustee, or fiduciary, for the police bond fund. The City's fiduciary activities are reported in a separate Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets on page 23. We exclude these activities from the City's other financial statements because the City cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The City is responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in this fund are used for its intended purpose. 



CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Management's Discussion and Analysis As of for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 (Unaudited) 
THE CITY AS A WHOLE For the year ended September 30, 2003, net assets changed as follows: Governmental Activities Beginning net assets $16,046,904 Increase in net assets 1,078,973 Ending net assets $ 

Business-type Activities Total $ 31,950,901 $ 47,997,805 843,951 1,922,924 $ ~  $ 49.920.729 That reflects a slight increase of 6.7 percent for governmental activities and 2.6 percent for business- type activities. It should be noted that $430,111 of the total net asset increase is related to the settlement reached with the United States Department of Justice to forgive a portion of the liability to repay costs of cleanup conducted at the Minden Airport Tar Pits site. 
Since this is the first year to report all activities on the accrual basis of accounting, a comparison to the prior year is not possible. However, in future years, this section will explain the differences between the current- and prior-year assets, liabilities, and changes in net assets. Governmental Activities 
Again, because this is the first year to report governmental activities on the accrual basis of accotmting, a comparison to the prior year is not possible. However, in next year's discussion this section will show a condensed financial comparison of revenues and expenses and provide explanations for significant differenees. To aid in the understanding of the Statement of Activities some additional explanation is given. Of particular interest is the format that is significantly different than a typical Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance. You will notice that expenses are listed in the first column with revenues from that particular program reported to the right. The result is a Net (Expense)/Revenue. The reason for this kind of format is to highlight the relative financial burden of each of the functions on the City's taxpayers. It also identifies how much each function draws from the general revenues or if it is self-financing through fees and grants. Some of the individual line item revenues reported for each function are: 
General government Building permits, licenses/registrations, rental fees Parks and recreation Tournament revenues, concessions, program fees Public safety Fines, seizures, charges for services, COPS grants and various operating grants 

Airport fuel sales, hangar rental fees 



CITY OF MIDDEN, LOUISIANA Management's Discussion and Analysis As of for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 (Unaudited) 
Sanitation and health Charges for garbage services, animal impoundment fees All other governmental revenues are reported as general. It is important to note that all taxes are classified as general revenue even if restricted for a specific purpose. Business-type activities 
Revenues for the City's business-type activities increased by 2.5% over last year's revenues. A large part of this increase was due to a 3% increase in electricity charges. With the exception of the electric department, expenses exceeded the revenues from charges in the other business-type activities. Within the sewer department, depreciation expense accounts for 47% of the total expense of the sewer department. Without the effect of depreciation, the sewer department as well as the electric department operates with a positive cash flow. 
With the implementation of two new accounting standards, an analysis of current- and prior-year governmental fund (in particular the geueral fund) balance sheets is difficult to do. In subsequent years, this section will discuss and analyze significant differences. However, some individual fimds were not affected by these new accounting standards and a review of those funds follows. Some funds have seen a decrease in fund balance due to various reasons. The following schedule presents a summary of changes in these two funds in relation to the prior year. 



CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA 
Management's Discussion and Analysis As of for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 (Unaudited) 
The following schedule presentS a summary of general, special revenue, capital projects, and debt service revenues and expenditures for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003, and the amount of percentage of increases and decreases in relation to the prior year. 

FYE 9/30/03 Revenues Amount Taxes $ 4,282,612 Intergovemmental 492,843 Charges for services 767,283 Licenses, permits, fees 870,822 Fines and forfeits 67,743 Interest 115,184 Miscellaneous 76,833 Total revenues 

Percent of Total 64 % 7% 12% 13% 1% 2% 1% 100 % 

Increase (decrease) from FY'E 9/30/02 (93,480) (297,155) 134 156,835 (21,337) (126,645) /7,293 

Percent increase (decreas_e.) (2)% (38) % 0% 22 % (24) % (52) % 29 % 
Sales taxes experienced a 2% decrease this year. The intergovermental revenues during fiscal year ended 9/30/02 included an airport grant of $574,389. This fiscal year the airport grant was $360,785, which accounts for the decline in this category. Licenses, permits and fees inereased over last year due to additional revenue in the recreational department. In fife 9/30/02, recreational fees were $17,764, and this fiscal year recreational fees was $127,106, due to concession, tournament, and paid instmetor revenues. FYE 9/30/03 Expenditures ~gnount General government $1,889,410 Public safety 2,300,570 Highway and streets 739,303 Sanitation and health 899,044 Parks and recreation 1,269,480 Public works 498,839 Capital outlay 407,163 Debt service 952,734 

Increase Percent (decrease) of Total from bYE 9/30/02 21% 356,466 26 % (186,193) 8 %o (2,483) 10 % 18,912 14 % (2,099,494) 6 % (220,814) 5 % (2,993,120) 10 % 2~.Q06,190) Total expenditures $ 8.956.543 100 % 

Percent increase (deerea~e) 23 % (7) % 0% 2% (62) % (31) % (88) % (68) % 
The increase in general government expenditures resulted from an 80% increase in the cost of insurance and a 32% increase in the cost of utilities. The police department which is one component of public safety program experienced an overall decrease in expenditures, even with a 31% increase in insurance costs. Salaries in the police department decreased 3% and capital expenditures decreased 73%. Last year's capital expenditure were related to police department renovations, which accounts for the decline in capital outlay. 



CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA 
Management's Discussion and Analysis As of for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 (Unaudited) 
Although the total expenditures of the parks and recreation department decreased from last year, a large component of this net decrease was due to the construction costs of the new recreation center reported in the prior year. This department experienced large increases over prior year in the following areas: salaries increased 55%, insurance increased 72%, and recreation center supplies increased 42%, due to the increase in activities/events held during the current year. Public works expenditures decreased due to the cost of improvements incurred at the airport over last year's improvement costs. As well, the prior year reported a large amount of expenditures for street improvements and construction of the recreation center which accounts for the decline in the capital outlay expenditures. Debt service decrease was due to the prior year reporting of a payoff of the Series 1992, Public Improvement Refunding Bonds. 
The City's proprietary fund statements provide the same type of information found in the government-wide fmancial statements but in more detail. Even after an operating transfer of over $2,000,000 to the general fund, the proprietary fund reports a net increase of $862,875 in its net assets. For the year ended September 30, 2003, the proprietary fund has been able to sustain its operations and also to transfer money to assist in the operations of the general fund. 
GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS Over the course of a year, the City Council revised the General Fund budget one time. This budget amendment was to recognize an increase in airport improvement costs. A corresponding increase in revenues was budgeted for the airport grant awarded to cover the costs of airport improvements. 
CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION At the end of September 30, 2003, the City had $38.1 million invested in capital assets including police and fire equipment, buildings, park facilities, water, sewer and eleetrics lines. This amount represents a net increase of $12.1 million, over last year. 
Land Construction in progress Building mad improvements Equipment Infrastructure Totals (net of depreciation) 

Governmental Activities 200..._33 2002 $ 799,547 799,547 523,092 11,895,473 3,098,379 1,380,725 1,361,559 1,429,554 632,877 $16.028.391 5.892.362 

Business-type Activities Totals 2003 2002 957,162 957,162 712,345 3,133,533 15,889,889 6,875,446 1,724,762 1,690,166 18~866,465 13 306 107 38.150_623 25.962_4L4 



CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Management's Discussion and Analysis As of for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 (Unaudited) 
This year's major additions included: Recreation complex Recreation complex sidewalks/upgrades & finishing A/rport runway/drainage improvements Airport runway lighting system/beacon Phase I - Sanitary Sewer Improvements Phase II - Sanitary Sewer Improvements East Street Substation Steam Plant Addition Sheppard Street Substation 115KV Transmission Conversion Elevated Water Tank Rehabilitation 
Debt 

$ 8,492,108 129,680 362,764 117,836 674,673 1,091,100 1,350,420 304,826 841,603 938,737 252,408 $~  
At year-end, the City had $6.8 million in debt as compared to $7.6 million last year. That is a decrease of 11% as shown in the following table. 
General obligation bonds (backed by taxes & City) Interest payable Capital leases Compensated absences Other liabilities 

GoveromentM Activities 
$ 5,475,000 57,512 2~324 216,151 889,430 
6,180,000 62,804 5,245 187.698 1,177,302 

Business-type Activities 
13,162 147,902 

5,475,000 57,512 39,486 364,053 889,43Q 6.825.481 
6,180.000 62,804 11,656 259,841 1,177,302 LfP~d~ The only new debt issued this year was a capital lease of $39,486 used to purchase a new computer system. Other liabilities of the city includes a settlement $650,000 owed to the United States Department of Justice. The settlement resulted in a forgiveness of $430,111 in liability reported in the prior year. Compensated absences increased due to an amendment adopted in the sick leave policy, which resulted in a potential increase in the amount payable for accumulated sick leave for persons who retire. The potential liability increased approximately 187%. More detailed information about the City's long-term liabilities is presented in Note 12 to the f'mancial statements. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES For the past two years, Minden's sales tax revenue has decreased. The sales tax is one of the major means by which we receive our funding. This has affected us, to a degree, in the area of our expenditures and investments. Also, the investment rates have been considerably lower in recent years. However, we have been able to maintain a good reserve and have not had to increase any of our utility rates. 



CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Management's Discussion and Analysis As of for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 (Unaudited) 
We are presently reviewing both our water and sewer rates. These rates are very low and we are currently in a less than break-even situation. The planning for next year's budget will be based on the same utility rates with a small increase in sales tax collections, with other fund remaining fairly level. We plan to aggressively budget for our infrastructure: streets, water and sewer, while trying to stay in an overall break-even cash flow situation. CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general overview of the City's finances and to show the City's accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact the City Clerk's office at 520 Broadway, Minden, Lonsiana. 



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Statement of Net Assets September 30, 2003 
ASSETS Current assets; Cash and cash equivalents Investments Receivables (net of allowancas for uneolleetibles) Internal balances Due from other funds Due from other governments Inventory Prepaid Items Noncurrent assets: Restricted assets Capital assets (net) Total assets LIABILITIES Current liabilities: Accounts, salaries, and other payables Due to other funds Due to other governments Bonds payable Total current liabilities NoncLwrent liabilities: Payable from restricted assets Obligations under capital lease Compensated absences payable Other liabilities Bonds and interest payable Total noncurrent liabilities Total liabilities 
NET ASSETS Invested in capital assets, net of ralated debt Restricted for: Capital projects Other purposes Unrestricted Total net assets 

P~'na~ Government Governmental /3usiness-Type Activities Activities 
5,930,170 $ 1,498,698 1,165,950 18,924 
37,182 16,583 40.824 

STATEMENT A 

6,508,634 $ 12,438,804 2,004,555 3,503,253 
2,148,143 (18,924) 38,655 559,785 58.016 

3,314,093 38,655 37,182 576,368 98,840 766,366 766,366 16,028,391 22,122,232 38,150,623 24,736,722 $ 34,187,462 $ 58,924.184 
769,577 $ 38,655 610,782 787,512 

816,167 $ 
2~206,526 816,167 
21,174 73,715 564,430 4,745,000 52404,319 7.610.845 

488,703 10,587 77,153 
576,443 $ 1,392,610 

1,585,744 38,655 610.782 787,512 3,022,693 
488,703 31,761 150,868 564,430 4,745~000 5,980,762 $ 9,003,455 

10,495,879 $ 22,122,232 $ 32,618,111 73,305 189,852 277,663 ~ 6,366,841 10,394,957 
73,305 467,515 16,761.798 

$ 17,125,87"7 $ 32,794,852 $ 49,920,729 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Government-Wide Financial Statement of Net Assets 
September 30, 2003 

STATEMENT D 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Assets are different because Fund Balances, Total Governmental Funds (Statement C) Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds Other assets used in governmental activities that arc not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds 
Long-term liabilities including bonds payable are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds: Accrued interest payable Compensated absences Bonds, notes, and loans payable Capital lease obligation 
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to individual funds. The assets and liaiblities of the internal service funds are reported with governmental activities Net Assets of Governmental Activities (Statement A) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

$ 6,693,460 
16,028,391 
131,611 

$ 58,462 73,715 5,475,000 26,324 (5,633,501) 



CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and and Changes in Fund Balances Governmental Funds For the Year Ended September 30, 2003 
REVENUES Taxes: Ad valorcm Sales and use Licenses and perrrnts Fees and rentals Charges for s~vices Intergovernmental revenues: Federal grants State/Parish Other Fines and forfeitures Investment earnings Other revenues Total revenues EXPENDITURES General government Public safety Highways and streets Sanitation and health Parks and recreation Public works Capital outlay Debt service Total expenditures 

General Fund Sales Tax Fund Sales Tax Sewerage Fund 

STATEMENT E 

$ 337,126 $ $ 1,920,839 1,920,838 390,018 480,804 767,283 383,933 89,587 11,250 67,743 29,623 39,195 2,596,562 
1,660,000 2,283,032 739,303 899,044 1,269,480 498,839 

61,265 11.721 1,982,104 1,932,559 
135,380 30,150 
15,137 7,349,698 150,517 30.150 Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (4,753,136) 1,831,587 1,902,409 OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) Transfers in Transfers out Capital leases Total other financing sources and uses 

5,840,833 (973,344) 13,162 4~880,651 (2,797,590) (2,132,733) 13.162 (2,784,428) (2,132,733) Excess (deficiency) ofrevanues and other sources over (under) expenditures and other uses 127,515 (952,841) (230,324) Special items - Forgiveness of liability to the National Pollution Funds Center Net change in fund balance Fund balances - beginning Fund balances - ending The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 16 

430All 557,626 (952,841) (230,324) 1,303,409 $ 1,861,035 3~650~470 $ 2,697,629 402~199 $ 171,875 



87 LCDBG Economic Development Fund 
Capital Improvement - Street Fund 

419.419 419.419 

Other Governmental Funds 
$ 103,809 $ 

1.147 
I5 

399,075 399.090 

8,073 
10,114 tl,428 11.407 144.831 
47,477 17,538 
9,339 952fl34 1.027.088 

Total Governmental Funds 
440,935 3,841,677 390,018 480,804 767,283 392,006 89,587 11,250 77,857 115,184 50,602 6,657,203 
1,873,022 2,300,570 739,303 899,044 1,269,480 498,839 423,551 952,734 8~956~543 (397,943) (882,257) (2,299,340) 943,750 

943.750 
932,327 (400,000) 532,327 

7,716,910 (6,303,667) 26~324 1,439,567 
545,807 (349,930) (859,773) 
545,807 25.782 (349,930) 1,321,843 $ 971,913 

17 

430.111 (429,662) 7.123.122 6.693.460 

STATEMENT E 



CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended September 30, 2003 

STATEMENT F 

Amounts reported for govemmantal activities in the Statement of Activities are different because Net Change in Fund Balances, Total Governmental Funds, Statement E $ (429,662) Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. 662,684 The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e. sales, trade-ins and contributions) are not reported as revenues in the funds 181,963 Revenue in the statement of activities that do not provide current resources are not reported as revenues in the funds 30,421 The issuance of long-term debt (bonds, leases, etc.) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of lung-term debt and related items. 684,054 Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds (8,500) The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. (46,331) Accrued interest expense on long-term debt !s reported in government-wide statement of activities and changes in net assets, but does not require the use of current financial resources, therefore accrued interest expense is not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 4,344 
Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities, Statement B 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 18 



CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Statement of Net Assets, Proprietary Funds September 30, 2003 
CLlrr er~t aSSetS: Cash and cash equivalents Investments Accounts receivable Other receivable Due from other funds Inventory Prepaid items Total current assets 

ASSETS 

Noneurrent assets: Restricted assets - Cash and interest-bearing bank deposits Investment (net of market adjustment) Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) Total noneurrent assets Total assets LIABILITIES Current liabilities: Accounts payable Claims incurred, not reported Municipal retirement payable Compensated absences payable Obligations under capital leases Interest payable Total current liabilities Current liabilities payable from restricted assets Noucurrent liabilities: Obligations under capital lease Compensated absences payable Total noncurrent liabilities Total liabilities NET ASSETS Invested in capital assets Restricted for meter deposits Unrestricted Total net assets Reconciliation to government-wide statement of net assets: Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of Internal Service Fund activities related to enterprise fund. Net assets of business-type activity The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 19 

Business Type Activity Water and Sewer 
$ 6,508,634 2,004,555 2,139,256 8,887 38,655 559,785 58,016 11,317,788 
738,368 27,998 22~122~232 22,888,598 
$ 704,177 
38,191 70,749 2,575 475 816,167 488,703 
10,587 77,153 87,740 1,392,610 
22,122,232 277,663 10.413.881 $ 32,813,776 
(18,924) $ 32,794,852 

STATEMENT G 
Gov~rwnental Activities - Internal Service Fund 
$ 148,176 
85 
148,261 

$ 148,261 
$ 21,751 239,431 
261.182 

261,182 
(112,921) $ (112.921) 



CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets Proprietary Funds For the Year Ended September 30, 2003 
Operating revenues: Charges for services Electric Water Sewerage Penalties/service charges Other charges for services 1'olal operating revemxes Operating expenses: Purchase of power Personal services Materials and supplies Insurance claims and expenses Repaks and maintenar~e Other services and charges Bad debt expenses Depreciation Total opera~ug expenses Operating income (loss) Nonoperating revenues (expenses): Gain on sale of assets Interest income Interest expense/and fiscal charges Management fees Total nonoperating revenues and expenses Income before contributions and transfers Capital contributions Trar~sfers in Transfers out Change in net assets Net assets - beginning Net assets - end of year Reconciliation to goverument-wide statement of net assets: Changes in net asset above 

Business Ty~ Activity Watex and Sewe~ 
Governmental Activities - Internal Service Fund 

$ 10,947,816 858,262 587,09l 166,409 78~088 1,478,867 -- 12,637,666 1,478,867 
5,313,592 1,720,560 331,518 533,946 859,630 840,110 68,611 836,547 10,504,514 

1,512,467 31,692 
2,133,152 (65,292) 
1,850 142,666 (637) (7,214) 136,665 

38 
38 2,269,817 (65,254_) 6,301 630,000 (2,043,243) 862,875 (65,254) _ 31,950~90I (47~667) $ 32,8t3,776 

862,875 Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of Internal Service activities related to enterprise activities __ (l 8,924) Changes innet assets of business-type activities, Statememt B The accompanying notes are an integralpart of this fmar~ial statement. 



CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Statements of Cash Flows Proprietary Funds Years Ended September 30, 2003 

Cash flows from operating activities: Cash received from customers Other operating cash receipts Cash received from other funds for services Cash payments for supplies and services Cash payments to employees for service Other operating cash payments Cash payments for benefits paid Net cash provided by operating activities 
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: Transfer from other funds Transfer to other funds Net increase in meter deposits Net cash used for noncapital financing activities Cash flows from capital and related financing activities Acquisition and construction of capital assets Principal paid on capital lease obligations Interest/fees paid on capital lease obligations Proceeds front sales of assets 

Business Type Activity Water and Sewer $ 12,494,308 94.844 (7,822,288) (1,641,995) (902,133) 
630,000 (2,042,349) 6,206 (1,406,143) 
(2,838,411) (6,411) (162) 1.850 Net cash used for capital and related financing activities (2~843,134) Cash flows from investing activities: Imerest on interest-bearing deposits Return of investment Net cash provided by investing activities Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
99,875 151,258 251.133 

STATEMENT I 

Governmental Activities - Irttemal Service Fund 
1,479,013 
(31,693) (1,413,364) 33.956 

38 
38 (1,775,408) 33,994 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 9,022,410 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 
114,182 $ 7,247,002 $ 148,176 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 21 



Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities: Operating income (loss) Adjuslments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities: Depreciation Bad debt Changes in assets and liabilities - Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable - other Decrease (increase) in inventory Decrease (increase) interfund loans Decrease (increase) prepaid insurance Increase (decrease) in accounts payable Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated absences Increase (decrease) in municipal retirement payable Increase (decrease) in claims payable Increase (decrease) in claims incurred, not reported 
Net cash provided by operating activities 

Business Type Activity Water and Sewer 

STATEMENT I 
Governmental Activities - Internal Service Fund 

2,133,152 $ (65,292) 
836,547 68,611 (45,032) (7,204) (11,355) 3,722 (14,902) (821,216) 68,625 11,788 

146 

(43,138) 142,240 
33.956 



CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets September 30, 2003 

ASSETS Cash A/R - net of allowance 
Total assets 
LIABILITIES 

Agency Fund - Police Bond Fund 
$ 11,686 25,546 

Due to other governmental units $ 37,232 
Total liabilities 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 

STATEMENT J 



 

CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 
The City of Minden, Louisiana (the City) was incorporated in 1928, under the provisions of Act No. 226 of the 1928 Special Acts of Louisiana Legislature. The City is located in the Parish of Webster, being in the northwest comer of the State of Louisiana. Elected officials of the City of Minden are a mayor, five (5) aldermen, and a chief of police who are elected every four years. The affairs of the City are conducted and managed by the mayor and board of aldermen, referred to as "The Council." The City provides a full range of municipal services as authorized by its charter. These include public safety (police and fire), street, water, electric, sewerage, sanitation and kealth, zoning and general administrative services. 
GASB Statement No. 14, The Reporting Entity, established criteria for determining the governmental reporting entity and eompunent units that should be included within the reporting entity. Under provisions of this Statement, the municipality is considered a primary government, since it is a special purpose government that has a separately elected governing body, is legally separate, and is fiscally independent of other state or local governments. As used in GASB Statement No. 14, fiscally independent means that the municipality may, without the approval or consent of another governmental entity, determine or modify its own budget, levy its own taxes or set rates or charges, and issued bonded debt. 
As required by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the City of Minden, Louisiana (the primary government) and its component units. The municipality has oversight of one component unit that is blended into the municipality's basic financial statements. Blended Component Units 
Component units that are legally separate from the municipality, but are so intertwined with the municipality that they are, in substance, the same as the municipality, are blended component units. For a component unit to be blended, the organization's board and the municipality must be substantively the same, or the organization must provide services entirely or almost entirely to the municipality. The following component unit is reported as part of the municipality and blended with the appropriate municipality funds: Minden Historic Downtown Development District Commission - Act No. 379 of the 1990 Regular Session enacted R.S. 33:2740.20 to create the Minden Historic Downtown Development District Commission. This commission was established to promote the educational, cultural, and economic welfare of the public of the City of Minden, Louisiana, by preserving and protecting historic structures and neighborhoods. The Minden Historic Downtown Development District Commission uses the Minden Main Street Project to carry out its functions and purpose. 
The City of Minden, Louisiana, appoints all members of the District Commission. In addition, the City provides a major source of the District's funding through levy of a 1.95 mill assessment on the special taxing district created within the City of Minden and additional yearly appropriations. The District Commission reports its 
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CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 recommendations and activities to the Mayor and City Council of the City of Minden, Louisiana. The Minden Historic Downtown Development District Commission is determined to be fiscally dependent and financially accountable to the City of Minden and therefore is reported as a blended component unit of the City of Minden, Louisiana. 
Based on the foregoing criteria, the following entities have been determined not to be a part of the City of Minden and are excluded from the accompanying financial statements: 
Minden Housing Authority - The Authority provides housing to certain qualified residents and is funded by U. S. Government grants and rental charges. The City is not responsible for financing deficits nor entitled to surpluses. The C~ty does not alguificantly inftuence operational or fiscal matters of the Authority, Minden Ward Marshal - The Minden Ward Marshal is the executive officer of the Ward I Court of Webster Parish. The principal duty of the Marshal is executing the orders and mandates of the Court. The Minden Ward Marshal is a separate reportable entity from the City of Minden, Louisiana, because the Marshal, an elected official, has the ability to exercise oversight responsibility regarding operations and accountability for fiscal matters. City Court - The City Court is the Ward I Court of Webster Parish. The court system handles misdemeanors and civil suits of up to $15,000 for Ward I. The City Court is a separate reportable entity from the City of Minden, Louisiana, beeanse the Judge, an elected official, has the ability to exercise oversight responsibility regarding operations and accountability for fiscal matters. 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
A~ Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of changes in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given fanetion or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 



 

CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 
B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation 
The guverument-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary funds financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accoanting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days oftha end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 
Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessment receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government. The municipality reports the following major governmental funds: The General Fund is the municipality's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources, of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. The Sales Tax Fund accounts for the receipt and use of the municipality's one percent (1%) sales and use tax under the provisions of the sales and use tax ordinance effective August 1, 1967. The Sales Tax Fund - Sewarage System accounts for the receipt and use of the municipality's one percent (l%) sales and use tax under the provisions of the sales and use tax ordinance effective December 1, 1984. By special election held April 15, 2000, the City rededlcated and renewed the levy of this one percent (1%) sales and use tax. 
87 LCDBG Economic Devetopment Fund accounts for resources and expenditures under a Louisiana Community Development Block Grant awarded by the State of Louisiana Department of Urban and Community Affairs, Qualified expenditures under the terms of the original grant included funds for the administration of the grant and provision of a loan to Sportco of Minden, Inc. for the location and operation of a boat manufacturing 



 

CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 facility in the City of Minden. Half of the principal and interest repayments of the loan are restricted to the City of Minden for economic development and the remaining half is due to be returned to the State of Louisiana. Capital Improvements - Street Fund is used to account for monies to be used for street improvements of the City of Minden. Resources are contributed wholly bythe City of Minden. The municipality reports one major proprietary fund. The enterprise fend is used to account for operations (a) where the intent of the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or Co) where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes. 
Additionally, the government reports the following fund types: 
Internal Service Fund accounts for the financing of goods or services provided by one department to other departments or governments on a cost-reimbursement basis. 
Agency Fund is used to account for assets held by the City as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds. Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement of results of operations. Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Startdards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to the same limitation. The government has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance. 
As a general rule the effect of interfimd activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges between the government's enterprise operations. Eliminations of these charges would distort direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the proprietary fimds are 



 

CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Financial Statements As ef and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 from charges for electrical, water and sewerage services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the municipality's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted reseurces as they are needed. 
C. Deposits and Investments Cash includes amounts in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, and money market accounts. Cash equivalents include amounts in time deposits, those investments with original maturities of 90 days or less. Under state law, the City may deposit funds in demand deposits, money market accounts, or time deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana law and national banks having their principal offices in Louisiana. 
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash, demand deposits, and certificates of deposit. Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost. 
Under state law, the City may invest in United States bonds, treasury notes, and certificates. In addition, the City may invest in bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by federal agencies and provided such obligations are backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S and also collateralized mortgage obligations, which have not been stripped into interest only and principal only obligations. These are classified as investments ff their original maturities exceed 90 days; however, if the original maturities are 90 days or less, they are classified as cash equivalents. Investments are reported at fair value, which is determined using selected bases. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Long-term investments, those with original maturities greater than one (1) year, are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. 
D. Receivables and Payables 
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as due to/from other funds. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances." 
In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. Allowances for uncollectible receivables are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include sales and use taxes, advalorem taxes, franchise taxes, police fines, and grants. Business-type activities report utilities as their major receivable. The City considers substantially all customers' utility receivables and other receivables to be fully collectible; accordingly, an allowance for doubtful accounts is not required. If amounts become uncollectible, in the opinion of management, they are charged to operations 

28 



at that time 
CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 

In the fund financial statements, material receivables in governmental funds include revenue accruals such as sales tax, franchise tax, grants and other intergovemmental revenues since they are usually both measurable and available. Nonexchange transactions collectible but not available are deferred in the fund financial statements in accordance with modified accrual, but not deferred in the government-wide financial statements in accordance with the accrual basis. Interest and investment earnings are recorded when earned and only if paid within 60 days since they would be considered both measurable and available. E. Inventories and Prepaid Items 
Inventory items are valued at cost using the first-in, first-out method. Inventories of the governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in goverument-wide financial statements. 
Inventories in each fund are generally composed of the following items 
General Fund - Garbage bags, gasoline Enterprise Fund - Electric, water and sewer repair and maintenance items 
F. Restricted Assets Restricted assets include cash and investments of the proprietary fund that are legally restricted as to their use. The primary restricted assets are related to utility meter deposits 
G. Capital Assets Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated cost if historical cost is not available. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The municipality maintains a threshold level of $5,000 or more for capitalizing capital assets. 
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. 



 

CITY OF MINDE]q, LOUISIANA Notes to the Financiai Statements As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. All capital assets, other than land, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives: 
Description Roads, bridges, and infi-astructare Land improvements Buildings and building improvements Furniture and fixtures Vehicles Equipment 

Estimated Lives 25-50 years 10-30 years 10-40 years 5-15 years 5-10 years 5-15 years GASBS No. 34 requires the City to report and depreciate new infrastructure assets effective with the beginning of the current year. Infrastructure assets include roads, bridges, underground pipe (other than related to utilities), traffic signals, ere, These infrastructure assets are likely to be the largest asset class of the City. Durug the fiseai year ended September 30, 2003, infrastructure being reported on includes street improvement projects completed during ~e current year and prior year costs related to recreation complex roads and irrigation and airport overlay. Of the remaining infrastructure, neither the historical cost nor related depreciation has historically been reported in the f'mancial statements. The retroactive reporting of infrastructure is subject to an extended implementation period and is first effective for fiscal years ending in 2006. The City has elected to implement the general provisions of OASBS No. 34 in the current year and hope to implement the retroactive infrastructure provisions in the fiscal year ending September 30, 2007. 
H. Compensated Absences The City's policy regarding vacation time permits full-time employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation leave. The only provision for vested benefits is that municipal employees, with the exception of employees of the police and fire department who are covered by Civil Service requirements, may carry forward no more than the maximum accruable amount for any vacation year. All employees do not have the option of foregoing vacation and being paid in lieu thereof. The entire accrued vacation liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements. For governmental fund financial statements, the current portion of this debt is the amount that is normally expected to be paid using expendable available financial resources. The City's policy regarding sick time permits full-time employees to accrue sick leave at the rate of eighty (80) hours per year, effective on the first day of full-time employment. Sick time my be carried over fi'om year to year. Upon retirement, the employee will be reimbursed for fifty (50) percent of their accrued sick leave at their regular hourly rate of pay. Total reimbursement cannot exceed 500 hours. All sick leave hours used in the two years prior to retirement date will be deducted from the fifty (50) percent accrual prior to reimbursement. There is no provision for reimbursement of accrued sick leave for termination other than retirement. The liability for sick leave accrual is recorded as long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements. An estimate of this accrual is based on historical trends. 



 

CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Fimmcial Stateanents As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 Long-Term Obligations The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements. 
All lung-term debt to be repaid from governmental and business-type resouxees are reported as liabilities in the government-wide statements. The long-term debt consists primarily of bonds payable, accrued compensated absences, and capital lease obligations. Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial statements. The debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of principle and interest reported as expenditures. The accounting for proprietary fund is the same in the fund statements as it is in the government-wide statements. 
& Fund EquRy In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balances for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by parties for use for a specific purpose. 
in government-wide statements, equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components: 
a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - consist of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. b. Restricted net assets - consist of net assets with coustmints place on the use either by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. e. Unrestricted net assets - all other net assets that do no meet the definition of "restricted" or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt." K. Extraordinary and Special Items 
Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are both unusual in nature and infrequent in occurrence. Special items are transactions or events within the control of the municipality, which are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence. 
L. Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
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CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 statements und the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures, and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
BUDGET INFORMATION The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in these financial statements: a) The City Clerk prepares a proposed budget and submits same to the Mayor and the Council no later than fifteen days prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. b) The public is notified that the proposed budget is available for public inspection. At that t/me, a public hearing is called. c) A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days at~er publication of the call for the hearing. d) After the holding of the public hearing and comptetiou of all action necessary to finalize and implement the budget, the budget is adopted through passage of an ordinance prior to the commencement of the fiscal year for which the budget is being adopted. e) Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department, program or function to another or involving increases or decreases in expenditures resulting from revenues exceeding or failing to meet amounts estimated require the approval of the Council. f) All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each fiscal year. g) Budgets for the General and Special Revenue Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Budgeted amounts, as originally adopted, are amended from time to time by the Council. 
EXCESS OF EXFEND1TURES OVER APPROPRL4TIONS The following individual funds had actual expenditures over budgeted appropriations for the year ended September 30, 2003: 
Fund Sales Tax Fund Sales Tax Fend - Sewerage 

On#~.al Budget 131,627 23,125 
Final Budget 131,627 23.125 

UnfavorabM Ac_tu~ Variance 150,517 (18,890) 30,1s0 (7,025) DEFICITS The Internal Service Fund had a deficff of $112,921 in unreserved retained earnings as of September 30, 2003. The deficit was due to the excess ofexponditures recognized for claims incurred as of the end of the year over actual funds transferred to the Internal Service Fund. The deficit will be eliminated through transfers from various funds. 
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CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Financial Smtemonls As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 
3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS At September 30, 2003, the City had cash and cash equivalents with book balances totaling $13,188,858, as follows: 
Petty cash funds Demand deposits Interest-bearing deposits Total 

$ 2,100 64,993 13,121,765 $ 13.188.858 These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities pins the federal deposit insurance must at all times at least equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties. At September 30, 2003, the City had $13,572,199 in deposits of collected bank balances. These deposits were secured from risk by $613,024 of federal deposit insurance and $16,465,131 of pledged securities held by the custodial bank in the name of the fiscal agent bank (GASB Category 3). A balance of $780,962 was not secured by the pledge of securities and is a violation of state law. Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollatemlized (Category 3) under the provisions of GASB Statement No. 3, Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within ten days of being notified by the City that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. 
INVESTMENTS Louisiana Revised Statutes and the City's investment policy govern the procedures to be followed and the types of allowable securities to be purchased by the municipality. The City of Minden is authorized to invest in the following types of investments: 
Direct U.S. Treasury obligations, the principal and interest of which are fully guaranteed by the U.S. government, Bonds, debentures, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by federal agencies and provided such obligations are backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S., and CoUateralized mortgage obligations, which have not been stripped into interest only or principal only obligations. Investments of the City of Minden are categorized as insured or registered, or securities held by the City or its agent inthe City's name. 

33 



 

CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 The following is a summary of investments at September 30, 2003 

U.S. Agency & Treasury Bonds U.S. Agency Collateralized Mtge. Obligations. Total securities U.S. Treasury Money Fund Total investments 

Governmental Funds Fair Value/ Carrying Amount Cost $1,377,467 1,383,249 
1,377,467 121.231 $1.498_698 1,383,249 121 23 I L~0.4A~ 

Proprietary Funds Fair Value/ Carrying Amount 1,809,063 
32,878 1,841,941 190,612 2.032.553 
C0~t 1,818,962 18.574 1,837,536 190.612 

The City of Minden's investments are reported at fair value, which is determined using selected bases in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31. Short-term investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Long-term investments, those with original maturities greater than one (1) year, are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. 
5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE Accounts receivable - utilities customers are analyzed periodically and accounts considered to be uncollectible are charged off. For the year ended September 30, 2003, $68,611 of accounts receivable were charged off. Past due accounts totaled $243,387 at September 30, 2003. 
The individual customer consumption meters are not all read on the same day of the month. Meters are generally read between the first (1) and the twenty-first (21) day of each month. At the end of any particular month, individual customers will have from a week to a total month's consumption that they will not be billed for until the following month. It is estimated that at the end of ~..~.v particular month there is, in the aggregate, approximately the equivalent of fit~een (15) days' consumption that is unbined to utility customers. Accounts receivable - utilities customers at September 30, 2003, consisted of $1,441,430 in current billed receivables and $697,826 of estimated unbilled receivables. 
Accounts receivable of the governmental activities consist fines/seizures (5%), franchise tax (4%), and other (2%). governmental activities are as follows: 
Accounts receivable Allowance for doubtful accounts Net accounts receivable $1,265,029 (99,079) $1.165.950 

34 

of loans/interest (60%), sales tax (29%), police Receivables detail at September 30, 2003 for 



6. ADVALOREM TAXES 
CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 

Ad valorem taxes attach as an enforceable lien on the valuation of property as of January 1 of each year. The City of Minden bills and collects its property taxes using the assessed values determined by the tax assessor of Webster Parish. 
The tax levy for 2002 was 8.45 mills of the assessed property valuation on tax rolls as of January 1, 2003. This tax became due on January 1, 2003, and delinquent on February 1, 2003. 
The tax was dedicated as follows: General corporate purposes Debt service 6.74 mills 1.71 mills 
For the year ended September 30, 2003, taxes of $420,328 were levied on property with assessed valuations totaling $49,742,955. 
Additionally, a tax of 1.95 mills on properties located within the established Minden Downtown Development District was approved by voters. Such tax was dedicated for use by the Minden Main Street Program. For the year ended September 30, 2003, taxes of $21,077 were levied on property with assessed valuations totaling $10,808,810. 
7. SALES AND USE TAX OPERATIONS A. 1% sales and use tax - The City of Minden was authorized to levy and collect a one per cent (1%) sales and use tax by a special election held May 23, 1967. The revenues derived therefrom were authorized to be used for: 
"the purpose of opening, constructing, paving, resurfacing, improving and/or maintaining streets, alleys, sidewalks and bridges; constructing, acquiring, extending, improving, renovating and/or maintaining street lighting facilities, water-works, sewers and sewerage disposal works, garbage collection and waste disposal facilities, police department stations and equipment, public buildings and/or fire department stations and equipment, including fire engines, public parks and recreational facilities, airport facilities, and parking facilities; and purchasing and acquiring the necessary land, equipment and furnishings for the aforesaid public works, building, improvements and facilities, and such tax to be subject to funding into bonds by the City in the manner authorized..." For the year ended September 30, 2003, Sales Tax operating lrunsfers (of "surplus") to other funds which were used for purposes for which the imposition of the tax was authorized were as follows: Transfers to General Fuud 
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CITY OF M1NDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 

1% sales and use tax - sewerage improvements - The City of Minden was authorized to levy and collect a one per cent (1%) sales and use tax by a special election held September 29, 1984. The revenues derived therefrom were authorized to be used for: 
"the purpose of constructing, acquiring, extending, improving, operating and maintaining sewers and sewerage disposal facilities and fund the proceeds of the Tax into bonds to be issued in series from time to time for the purpose of constructing, acquiring and improving sewers and sewage disposal facilities and the Council shall (i) annually budget the amount of said net proceeds of the Tax required to pay principal and interest and reserve requirements on all bonds payable from the Tax end the amount required for extending, improving, operating and maintaining sewers and sewage disposal facilities and (ii) use the excess over said requirements to pay said bonds in full prior to their stated maturity and when provisions shall have been made for the payment of all of said bonds in full the authority to levy the Tax shall terminate." By a special election held April 15, 2000, the City rededicated and renewed the levy of a one percent (1%) sales and use tax, which was originally authorized at an election held in the City on September 29, 1984. The revenues derived therefrom were rededicated to be used for: 
"the purpose of acquiring, constructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and operating sewerage, sewage disposal facilities and recreational facilities, including the acquisition of sites therefore, and authority to fund the sales tax into bonds by the City in the manner authorized" 
For the year ended September 30, 2003, Sales tax-sewerage improvements operating transfers to other funds which were used for purposes for which the imposition of the tax was authorized were as follows: 

Transfers to 
Debt Service 

Beginning July 1992, the City entered into an agreement with the Webster Parish Centralized Sales Tax Collection Agency to collect sales tax. The Agency collects the taxes from vendors, then remits to the City, after deducting an administrative fee. The administrative fee was assessed at the following amounts: 
10/01/02 - 12/31/02 01/01/03- 09/30/03 
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1.400 % 1.500 % 



 

CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 
Reslricted assets of the City of Minden at September 30, 2003 were as follows: Customers' Deposits Bank deposit accounts Investments (net of market adjustment) Total restricted assets CAPITAL ASSETS 

$ 738,368 27,998 $766.366 
Capital assets and depreciation activity as of and for the year ended September 30, 2003, for the primary government is as follows: 
Governmental activities: Capital assets, not being depreciated Land Construction in progress Total capital assets, not being depreciated Capital assets being depreciated Buildings Land improvements other than buildings Equipment Infrastructure Total capital assets being depreciated Less accumulated depreciation for: Buildings Land improvements other than buildings Equipment Infrastructure Total accumulated depreciation Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 
Governmental activities capital assets, net Business-type activities: Capital assets, not being depreciated Land Construction in progress Total capital assets not being depreciated 

Balance October 1.2002 Additions 
799,547 
799,547 
3,548,198 1,713,254 3,456,568 699.625 9,4!7,645 
1,837,317 325,756 2,095,009 66,748 4,324,830 5.092,815 

~ 523,092 523,092 
8,542,108 460,764 272,468 846.9~9 10,122,279 
160,409 45,369 253,302 50,262 509,342 9.612.937 

$ 157,615 3,133,533 3,291,148 
37 
2,714,142 2,714,142 

Balance Deletions~ Santember 30, 2003 

5,658,422 5,658,422 

799,547 523,092 1,322,639 
12,090,306 2,174,018 3,729,036 1.546.564 19,539,924 
1,997,726 371,125 2,348,311 117.010 4.834.172 14,705,752 

157,615 189,253 346,868 



 

CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 Capi~l assets being depreciated Electric Department: Diesel generating plant Steam turbine generating plant Commercial power de-in Electric distribution lines Water Department: Water walls Water tanks Water treatment plant and lines Equipment Sewer Department: Sewer system Wastewater treatment plant Other: Street lights Warehouse Office equipment Autos, trucks and equipment Shop and misc. equipment Total capital assets being depreciated 
Less accumulated depreciation for: Eleatric Depmeanent: Diesel generating plant Steam turbine generating pimxt Commercial power tie-in Electric distribution lines Water Department: Water wells Water tanks Water trealment plant and lines Equipment Sewer Department: Sewer system Wastewater treatment plant Other: Street lights Warehouse Office equipment Autos, trucks and equipment Shop and misc. equipment Total accumulated depreciation Total capital assets, being depreeinted, net 

2,474,119 5,315,940 2,013,635 5,544,163 781,875 241,065 7,981,844 274,873 
7,931,351 4,925.129 169,872 322,384 223,976 1,398,864 169,586 39,768,676 
2,460,400 5,240,568 2,013,635 2,729,730 
331,543 116,656 2,624,347 237,498 3,471,430 1,930,866 128,493 203,412 199,637 1,187,752 113.805 22,959,77~ 16.778,90~ 

19,277 77,104 3,435,586 
5,2o0 287,135 14,091 
1,893,323 
18,192 76,959 __ 6,140 5,833,007 
1,411 4,462 192,859 22,992 6,634 181.763 7,095 201,513 123,939 
3,184 11,929 11,481 56,054 1[,231 __$36,547 4.996.460 

40,229 
40,229 

40,229 

2A93,396 5,393,044 2,013,635 8,979,749 787,075 528,200 7,995,935 274,873 9,824,674 4,925,129 
169,872 322,384 242,168 1,435,594 175,726 42561,454 
2,461,811 5,245,030 2,013~35 2,922,589 354,535 123,290 2,806,110 244.593 
3,672,943 2,054,805 131,677 215,341 211,118 1,203,577 125,036 23,786,090 51,775,364 Business-type capital assets, net $ ~ ~ 5.65g.~ 22.122.232~ 
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CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 Depreciation expense was charged as direct expense of the primary government as follows: 
Governmental activities General government Public safety Highway and streets Sanitation and health Parks and recreation Public works Total 

10. RETIREMENT SYSTEMS 

$ 85,131 83,804 135,558 4,659 167,087 33,103 

Business-type activities: Water Sewer Electric Other Total 
$ 247,749 325,452 242,146 21.200 $ IB_6,5..4.7 

Substantially all employees of the City of Minden, Louisiana, are members of the following statewide retirement systems: Municipal Employees Retirement System of Louisiana, Municipal Police Employees Retirement System of Louisiana, or Firefighters' Retirement System of Louisiana. These systems are cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans administered by separate boards oflaxlstees. Pertinent information relative to each plan follows: 
Plan Description. The System is composed of two distinct plans, Plan A and Plan B, with separate assets and benefit provisions. All regular employees, other than firemen and policemen, of the City of Minden, Louisiana, are members of Plan A. 
All permanent employees working at least 35 hours per week who are not covered by another pension plan and are paid wholly or in part from municipal funds and all elected municipal officials are eligible to participate in the System. Under Plan A, employees who retire at or a~ar age 60 with at least I0 years of creditable service, or at any age with at least 25 years of creditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to three (3) percent of their final-average salary for each year of creditable service. Elected officials receive three and one-half (3 ~) percent. Final-average salary is the employee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined months that produce the highest average. Employees who terminate with at least the amount of creditable service stated above, and do not withdraw their employee contributions, may retire at the ages specified above and receive the benefit accrued to their date of termination. The System also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established or emended by state statute. 
The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes fiuancial statements and required supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the Municipal Employees Retirement System of Louisiana, 7937 Office Park Boulevard, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809, or by calling (225) 925-4810. Funding Policy. Under Plan A, members are required by state statute to contribute 9.25 percent oftheir annual 

39 



B 

C. 

CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 covered salary and the City of Minden, Louisiana, is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the fiscal year ended 9/30/03, this rate ranged from 8.00-11.00 percent of annual covered payroll. Contributions to the System also include one-fourth of one percent (except Orleans and East Baton Rouge parishes) of the taxes shown to be collectible by the tax rolls of each parish. These tax dollars are divided between Plan A and Plan B based proportionately on the salaries of the active members of each plan. The contribution requirements of plan members and the City of Minden, Louisiana, are established and may be amended by state statute. As provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103, the employer contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and are subject to changes each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The City of Minden, Louisiana's contributions to the System under Plan A for the years ending September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, were $222,579, $175,806, and $141,941, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each years. 
Plan Description. All full-time police department employees engaged in law enforcement are required to participate in the System. Employees who retire at or after age 50 with at least 20 years of creditable service or at or after age 55 with at least 12 years of creditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 3 1/3 percent of their final-average salary for each year of creditable service. Final-average salary is the employee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined months that produce the highest average. Employees who terminate with at least the amount of creditable service stated above, and do not withdraw their employee contributions, may retire at the ages specified above and receive the benefit accrued to their date of termination. The System also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established or amended by state statute. 
The System issues an annual publicly available f'mancial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the Municipal Police Employees Retirement System of Louisiana, 8401 United Plaza Boulevard, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809- 2250, or by calling (225) 929-7411. 
Funding Policy. Plan members are required by state statute to contribute 7.5 percent of their annual covered salary and the City of Minden, Louisiana, is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the fiscal year ended 9/30/03, this rate ranged from 9.00-18.25 percent of armual covered payroll The contribution requirements of plan members and the City of Minden, Louisiana, are established and may be amended by state statute. As provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103, the employer contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and are subject to changes each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The City of Minden, Louisiana's contribution for the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, were $75,674, $69,493, and $64,084, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 
Plan Description. Membership in the Louisiana Firefighters' Retirement System is mandatory for all full-time firefighters employed by a municipality, parish, or fire protection district that did not enact an ordinance before 



 

CITY OF M1NDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 January 1, 1980, exempting itself from participation in the System Employees are eligible to retire at or after age 55 with at least 12 years of creditable service or at or after age 50 with at least 20 years of creditable service. Upon retirement, members are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 3 1/3 percent of their final-average salary for each year of creditable service, not to exceed 100 percent of their f'mal-average salary. Final-average salary is the employee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined months that produce the highest average. Employees who terminate with at least 12 years of service and do not withdraw their employee contributions may retire at or after age 55 (or at or after age 50 with at least 20 years of creditable service at termination) and receive the benefit accrued to their date of termination. The System also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established or amended by state statute. 
The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the Firefighters' Retirement System, Post Office Box 94095, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70804, or by calling (225) 925-4060. Funding Policy. Plan members are required by state statute to contribute 8.0 percent of their annual covered salary and the City of Minden, Louisiana is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. For the fiscal year ended 9/30/03, this rate ranged from 9.00-18.25 percent of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members and the City of Minden, Louisiana, are established and may be amended by state statute. As proved by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103, the employer contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and are subject to change each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The City of Mindan, Louisiaua's contributions for the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 were $69,150, $39,875, and $37,564, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. 11. CAPITAL LEASES 
The City records items under capital leases as an asset and an obligation in the accompanying financial statements. The City has one capital lease of a computer system for a total cost of $36,245. The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under capital leases and the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of September 30, 2003: Year Ending Sept. 30 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Total minimum lease payments less amount representing interest Present value of net minimum lease payments 

Governmental activities $ 5,356 5,356 5,356 5,356 5,356 26,780 (2,614) $ 24.166 

Business-type activities $ 2,677 2,677 2,677 2,677 2,677 13,385 (1,306) $12&79 



 

CITY OF MIIffDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Fimmcial Statements As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 The municipality has operating Leases and rental expense as follows: 
Governmental activities Equipment: Canon 5000 copier - $456/month for 47 months $ 3,648 Time Clock - $335/month for 36 months 4,020 Minolta Di250 copier - $256/month for 48 months 3,072 Minolta Di250 copier - $190/month for 48 months 2,280 Total rental expense $13.020 

Business-type activities. $1,824 
$1.824 The minimum annual commitments under noncancelable operating leases are as follows 

F~calyear: 2004 2005 2006 Total 
12. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

EouiDment 
$11,276 8,822 2,280 $ 22.378 

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended September 30, 2003 
Type of debt Governmental activites: General obligation Interest payable Compensated absences Capital lease obligations Other liabilities Total governmental debt 

Business-type activities: Compensated absences Capital lease obligations Total bnsiness-type debt 

Balance Balance Amount due Oct. 1, 2002 Additions Deductions Sept. 30, 2003 within one year 
$ 6,180,000 62,804 187,698 28,453 5,245 26,324 1,177,302 142,239 $ 7.613.049 197.016 
$ 72,143 6,411 $ 78.554 
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(705,000) (5,292) (5,245) (430.111) (1.145.648) 
$ 5,475,000 57,512 216,151 26,324 889,430 $ 6.664.417 
$ 730,000 57,512 142,436 5,150 325,000 

75,759 $ 147,902 $ 70,749 13,162 (6.411) 13,162 2,575 88.921 (6.41!) $ 161.064 $ 73.32_4 



 

CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 Bonds payable at September 30, 2003, are comprised of the following individual issues: 
Principal Outstanding 

Interest to Maturity $475,000 General Obligation Kefunding Bonds, Series 1991, dated September 26, 1991; due in annual installments of $5,000 - $55,000 through March 1, 2005; interest at 4.7% - 6.65%; secured by levy and collection of ad valorem taxes $ 110,000 7,301 $4,000,000 Sales Tax Bonds, Series 2001, dated Jane 1, 2001; due in annual installments of $5,000 - $355,0000 through January 1, 2021; interest at .10%-5.2%; secured by pledged of the City's 1% sales and use tax designated for sewerage system improvements and recreation 3,995,000 2,153,884 $2,020,000 Refunding Bonds, Series 2002, dated 1/16/2002; due in amaual installments of $650,000-$700,000 through January 1, 2005; interest at 3.09%; secured by a pledge of excess annual revenues of the City above statutory, necessary and usual charges in each of the fiscal years during which the bonds are outstanding 1,370,000 $ 5.475.009 42,797 The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of September 30, 2003, including interest payments of $2,203,982, are as follows: Year ending September30 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009-2013 2014-2018 2019-2021 

General ObUgafion Principal $ 730,000 760,000 165,000 175,000 185,000 1,070,000 1,380,000 1,010,000 $ 5.475.000 

Interest 222,752 197,936 185,208 181,975 175,403 727,650 432,872 80,186 2.203.982 

Total 952,752 957,936 350,208 356,975 360,403 1,797,650 1,812,872 1,090,186 7.678.982 



 

CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 At September 30, 2003, $886,938 was available in the Debt Service Funds to service the general obligation bonds. 
In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statutes, the City is legally restricted in the amount of long-term bonded debt that may be issued. At September 30, 2003, the statutory limit was $4,974,296. As of September 30, 2003, the City had $110,000 of bonds secured by ad valorem taxes. 13. SICK LEAVE LIABILITY 
During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003, the City emended its sick leave policy, which rusulted an increase in the liability recognized in the financial statements. An estimated liability of $36,328 and $63,331, has been recognized in the governmental activities and business-type activities, respectively. 
In prior years, in the fund financial statements, the estimated liability for sick leave was approximately $34,627, for all funds types. With a liability of $18,379 being recognized in the proprietary funds, and $16,248 being recognized in the general long-term debt account group for the long-term obligation of the governmental fund types. 
14. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS 
interfimd transfers during the year ended September 30, 2003, were as follows 
Transfers out General Fund Sales Tax Fund Sales T~ F~md - Sewerage System Non-major governmental Enterprise Fund Total 

Overating Transfers In General Sales Tax- Capital Impr. - Enterprise Non-Major F~qd Sewcrag~ Streets Fund Governmental $ 918,250 29,594 947.844 2,797,590 2,79%590 1,000,000 2.043.243 $ LE492&~ 230,000 230.000 
230,000 400,000 2,132,733 400,000 2.273.243 8.551.410 

Transfers are primarily used to move funds from: Sales Tax Fund - Sewerage System to cover debt service attributable to sewerage bonds and recreation bonds and also to cover costs of sewerage activities within the Enterprise Fund and recreation activities within the General Fund. The Enterprise Fund and Sales Tax Fund to supplement costs within the General Fund. General Fund to cover costs of street construction within Capital Improvements - Street Fund. 
15. RESERVED RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES 
The City had the following reservations of fund balances as of September 30, 2003 * A fund balance of $73,305 was reserved at September 30, 2003, for future approved capital projects. The Local 



 

CITY OF M1NDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 Government Assistance Fund accounts for monies appropriated to be spent by Minden only on capital programs and purposes including "any expenditures for acquiring lands, building, equipment or other permanent properties, or for their preservation or development or permanent improvement", and cannot be used as part of the operating budget. All programs must be approved by respective state legislative delegates. At September 30, 2003, $886,938 was reserved in the Debt Service Funds to service the general obligation bonds. $9,692 of fired balances was reserved for drug law enforcement. 
16. CONTRACTUAL SERVICE AGREEMENT - SANITATION SERVICES On September 1, 1995, the City entered into a five-year agreement, which was extended for an additional five-year term, with Waste Managc~lent of Northwest Louisiana, a private company, to provide sanitation services to the City. These services include residential garbage and recyclable item pick-up and the disposal of such waste, with fees based on the number of pick-ups per week and the type of collectiun (curbside or backyard). The City then charges a monthly fee for sanitation services to individual customers on their utilities bills. 
17. PENDING LITIGATION The City of Minden has fried suit against Thomas G. Ray, President/Owner of Sportco of Minden, Inc., for repayment of a loan made to Sportco. The loan was made through a grant agreement with the State of Louisiana. If successful, the $720,000 balance paid will be remitted to the State of Louisiana to satisfy the outstanding loan balance. The City of Minden will not realize a profit from this action. is a suit filed by three (3) firemen retirees who were living with their families in the fire station residence, who allege that they are entitled to overtime pay. If successful, the City will be liable for overtime due to the plaintiffs for the past three years. 
There are several other pending lawsuits in which the City is involved. The City Attorney estimates that the potential claims against the City, not covered by insurance resulting from litigation not mentioned above, would not materially affect the financial statements of the City. Effective April 1, 1998, the City reinstated its general liability coverage. The City will maintain the reserve fund established in prior years for self-insurance. The reserve will be used to pay claims for amounts less than the deductible allowed under the City's general liability coverage. At September 30, 2003, $417,503 has been reserved in the Enterprise Fund-Utilities Fund for this purpose. 
18. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
The City participates in a number of federally-assisted grant programs, such as the Community Development Block Grant. These programs ere subject to program compliance audits which could lead to request for reimbursements by the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under the terms of the grants. City management believes that the amount of disallowances, if any, which may arise from such audits will not be material. 



 

CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 
In connection with the 87 LCDBG Economic Development Grant, the recipient of the loan proceeds, Sportco of Minden Inc., is delinquent on repayment of such proceeds. Under the terms of the grant, the state may require reimbursement of the outstanding balance by the City. At September 30, 2003 the total outstanding loan balance was $631,038, of which $379,783 is owed to the City and $251,255 is owed to the State of Louisiana. According to an amendment to the grant agreement, upon default by Sportco of Minden, Inc., the City could be held liable for the entire balance of the note, at the option of the Division of Administration of the State of Louisiana. At September 30, 2003, that balance was $705,201, including $74,163 in accrued interest. 
On March 7, 1994, representatives of the City; the State of Louisiana, Division of Administtatinn; and Sportco, Inc. met to come to an agreement regarding Sportco's outstanding note balance, as detailed above. The agreement, approved by the Division of Administration, was to grant a one-year extension for the resenaption of payments on the loan until March 1, 1994. Subsequent to this agreement, Sportco, Inc., on August 30, 1996, filed a petition for bankruptcy under Chapter Eleven. The bankruptoy petition shows an estimated liability to the State of Louisiana in the amount of $323,789, and to the City of Minden in the amount of $303,895. 
As previously stated in Note I6, the City has filed suit against Thomas G. Ray in an attempt to obtain payment for the outstanding balance of the loan. As a result, the State contends that the City has acted "in good faith," with respect to the administration of the loan, however, this matter remains unresolved pending the outcome of the litigation. The management of the City also contends that they have acted "in good faith" in compliance with the grant agreement and will, therefore, not be held liable for the entire balance of the note, of which $305,519 has been reserved in the retained earnings section of the Utility Fund. 19. LIABILITY TO U.S. COAST GUARD NATIONAL POLLUNTION FUNDS CENTER 
On June 26, 2000, the EPA and their eontracter, the United States Army Corps of Engineers, conducted a cleanup at the Minden Airport Tar Pits site. The cleanup was funded by the U.S. Coast Guard National Pollution Funds Center (NPFC) using the Oil Spill Liability Trust Fund (Fund), which was established by the Oil Pollution Act of 1990. The NPFC considers the City of Minden, owner of the property, responsible and liable for oil removal costs. The NPFC has submitted bills to the City of Minden totaling approximately $1,080,111. The City is contesting the EPA's actions in this matter, asserting that the removal of the pollution threat was not lawfully within the jurisdiction of the FedemI Water Pollution Control Act. The City is also disputing their liability under the Oil Pollution ACt of 1990 (OPA). Per a letter from the U.S. Coast Guard dated September 25, 2001, "the OPA is a strict liability statute, and imposes liability on owners without regard to fault or particular involvement with a facility or vessel. Defenses to liability are limited to 22 USC 2703. Because this debt exceeds $100,000, it will be referred to the Department of Justice as required by applicable regulations should the City decline to pay these costs." As of September 30, 2003, the City negotiated a settlement with the United States Department of Iustice to pay $650,000 in reimbursement of removal costs to be paid in two installments of $325,000 plus interest. The first installment is to be paid within thirty day s of the date the agreed judgmant is entered bythe court. The remaining installment, plus accrued interest, is to be paid on or before December 1, 2004. 



 

CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Financial Statemunts As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2003 20. PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENT 
The beginning fund balances/retained earnings presented in the fund financial statements have been restated to reflect adjustments and changes in presentation within the general and enterprise fund. A restatement of the beginning fired balance and activity for the year ended September 30, 2003 was recognized in the fund financial statements as follows: 
Fund balance/retained earnings, originally reported as of September 30, 2002 Accrual of receivables Recognize deposit in transit between bank accounts, correct overstatement of expense Combine fund balences of capital improvement accounts for sewer, electric, and water within enterprise fund Recognize prepaid insurance as of 9/30/02 Recognize additional construction in progress Correct accumulated depreciation amounts for assets not fully depreciated 
Fund balance/retained earnings, restated as of September 30, 2002 
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General Fund 
$ 1,287,044 7,533 
8,832 

Enterprise Fund 
30,380,024 

1,737,994 43,114 15,090 (225,321) 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures that are required by the GASB but are not considered a part of the basic financial statements. Such information includes: 

Budgetary Comparison Schedules: General Fund Sales Tax Fund Sales Tax Fund - Sewerage System 



CITY OF MIDDEN, LOUISIANA Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Pund Balances - Budget and Actual General Fund For the Year Ended September 30, 2003 

Revenues Taxes - ad valorem Lice~ases - occupad.onal Fees and rentals Charges for services Fines and forfeitures Intergovearmaental Interest Miscellaneous Total revemues Expenditures General Govenmaeat Public Safety Highway and s~eets Sanitation and health Pa~ks and recreation Public works Tot~ expeadita~es 

$ 324,441 350,000 333,300 755,070 72,500 67,850 15,525 26,500 1,945~186 
1,506,592 2,333,135 945,932 835,145 1,277,694 312,238 7,210,736 

$ 324,441 350,000 333,300 755,070 72,500 448,709 15,525 26,500 2,326,045 
1,506,592 2,333,135 945,932 835,145 1,277,694 693,097 7,591,595 

Actual GAAP Ba~s 
$ 337,126 390,018 480,804 767,283 67,743 484,770 29,623 55,312 2,612,679 
1,660,000 2,283,032 739,303 899,044 1,269,480 498,839 7,349,698 

SCHEDULE la 

Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative) 
$ 12,685 40,018 147,504 12,213 (4,757) 36,061 14,098 28,812 286.634 
(153,408) 50,103 206,629 (63,899) 8,214 194,258 241,897 Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (5,265,550 (5,265,550) (4,737,019) 528,531 (under) e~penditures Other Financing Sources (Uses) Capital lease Operating transfers in Ope~ttiag txa~sfet~ out Total other financing sources (uses) 

13,162 5,797,590 5,797,590 5,824,716 (96 t,a03) (961,603) _ ~973,344) 4,835,987 4,835,987 4,864,534 
13,162 27,126 (11:4~ 28,547 Excess (deficiency) ofreveaues and other sources over (muler) expenditures and other uses (429,563) (429,563) 127,515 557,078 Special items - Forgiveness of liabih'ty to the National Pollution Fads Center N~change in fund balance 430.111 430.111 (429,563) (429,563) 557,626 987,189 Fund balance at beginning of year 1,303,409 1,303,409 1,303,409 Fund balance at end of year $ 873,846 $ 873,846 $ 1,861,035 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 49 
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CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual Special Revenue Fund - Sales Tax Fund For the Year Ended September 30, 2003 

Revenues: Taxes - sales Interest Total revenues Expenditures: General government - Salaries Insurance expense Retirement expense Office and computer supplies Collection expense Professional fees Miscellaneous Capital leases - Principal Interest Capital expenditures Total expenditures 

Budgeted Amounts Original Budget $1,900,000 28,000 1,928,000 
62,220 6,211 4,868 9,925 20,000 9,000 12,543 
6,860 131,627 

$1,900,000 28,000 1,928,000 
62,220 6,211 4,868 9,925 20,000 9,000 12,543 
6.860 131.627 Excess of revenues over expenditures 1,796,373 1,796,373 Other financing (uses): Capital lease Operating transfers out Total other financing (uses) (2,797,590) (2,797,590_) (2,797,590) (2,797,590) 

Actual GAAP Basis $1,920,839 61265 1,982,104 
61,757 8,385 5,384 5,286 30,130 8,462 14,781 1,166 29 15.137 150.517 1.831.587 

SCHEDULE lb 

13,162 (2,797,590) (2,784,428) 

Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative) . $ 20,839 33,265 54.104 
463 (2,174) (516) 4,639 (10,130) 538 (2,238) (1,166) (29) (8,277_) (18,890_) 35,214 
13,162 
13,162 Excess(deflciency) ofrevenues over (under)expendituresandother uses (1,001,217) (1,001,217) (952,841) 48,376 Fund balance at beginning of year 3,650,470 3,650,47Q 3.650.470 Fund balance at end of year $ 2,649,253 $ 2,649,253 $ 2,697=====~,629 $ 48,376 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 
50 



CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual Special Revenue Fund - Sales Tax Fund Sewerage System For the Year Ended September 30, 2003 

Revenues: Sales taxes Interest Total revenues Expenditures: General government - Collection expense Miscellaneous Total expenditures 

Budgeted Amounts Original Budget 
$1,900,000 20.000 $1,900,000 20,000 

Actual GAAP Basis 
$1,920,838 11.721 1,920,000 1,920,000 1,932,559 

23,000 125 23.125 Excess of revenues over expenditures 1,896,875 Other financing (uses): Operating transfers out - Refunding Bonds, Series 2002 Utility Fund General Fund Sinking Fund, Series 2001 Total other financing (uses) 
(712,328) (241,239) (1,000,000) (190,305) (2,143,872) 

23,000 125 23,125 1,896,875 
(712,328) (241,239) (1,000,000) (190,305) (2,143,872) 

30,130 20 30.150 1,902.409 
(712,328) (230,000) (1,000,0oo) (190,405) (2,132,733) Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures and other uses (246,997) (246,997) (230,324) Fund balance at beginning of year 402,199 402.199 402,199 

Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative) $ 20,838 (8,279) 12,559 
(7,130) 105 (7,025) 5.534 
11,239 (100) 11.139 
16,673 

Fund balance at endofyear $ 155,202 $ 155,202 $ 171,875 $ 16,673 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement. 



CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES SEPTEMBER 30, 2003 

Note 1. BUDGET PRESENTATION Budget comparisons are not presented for one major governmental fund, the 87 LCDBG Economic Development Fund. The 87 LCDBG Economic Development Fund accounts for a $750,000 Community Development Block Grant previously awarded by the State of Louisiana Division of Administration. 
Under the terms of the contract, the funds were budgeted as follows 
Loan to Sportco of Minden, Inc., for acquisition of capital equipment, inventory and rehabilitation of building and grounds $720,000 Administration 30,000 

The repayment of the loan is for a 10-year period. Interest, at a rate not less than eight and one-half percent (8-1/2%)is to be repaid beginning the sixth month after the first drawdown of LCDBG funds and is to continue monthly for the next eighteen months. Repayment of principal and interest shall begin on the twenty-fifth month after the first drawdown and is to continue monthly for the next 120 months. The City is obligated to return half of the principal and interest payments to the State of Louisiana and the remaining half is restricted for economic development. 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
Other supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not required by the GASB nor a part of the basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional analysis. 
Such statements and schedule include ~ Combining StatementS- Nonmajor governmental funds ~ Schedule of Compensation Paid Board Members ~ Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 



 

c~ 

o~ 



 

c~ 

8~ 
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CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget and Actual Nonmajor Governmental Fund - Main Street Program Fund Year Ended September 30, 2003 

Revenues Advalorern tax Other revenues Total revenues 
Expenditures General government Capital outlay Total expenditures 

Actual GAAP Basis 

SCHEDULE 4a 

Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative) 
$ 21,000 $ 21,000 $ 20,955 $ (45) 2~000 2,000 1,591 (409) 23,000 23,000 22,546 . (454) 
45,220 1,750 46,970 
45,220 1,750 46,970 47,477 1,266 48,743 (2,257) 484 (1,773) Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (23,970) (23,970) (26,197) (2,227) Other Financing Sources (Uses) Transfers in 23,970 23,970 24,903 

Net change in fund balance 
Fund balance at beginning of year 3,272 3,272 

933 
(1,294) (1,294) 
3,272 

Fund balanee at end of year $ 3,272 $ 3,272 $ 1,978 $ (1,29~ 

See accompanying note to budgetary comparison schedules 
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SCHEDULE 4b CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget and Actual Nonmajor Governmental Fund - General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 1991 Year Ended September 30, 2003 

Revenues Advalorcm tax Interest Total revenues 
Expenditures Debt service Total expenditures 

Actual GAAP Basis 
Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative) 

$ 80,000 $ 80,000 $ 82,854 $ 2,854 1,500 1,500 1,444 (56) 81,500 81,500 84,298 2,798 
59,663 59,663 59,663 59,663 58,912 58,912 751 751 

Excess of revenues over expenditures 21,837 21,837 25,386 3,549 Other fulancing sources (uses) Transfers out (21,837) (21,837) 
Net change in fund balance 

21.837 
25,386 25,386 

Fund balance at beginning of year 105,949 105,949 105,949 
Fund balance at endofyear $105,949 $105,949 $131,335 $ 25,386 

See accompanying note to budgetary comparison schedules 
57 



CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget and Actual Nonmajor Governmental Fund - Sales Tax Bonds, Series 2001 Year Ended September 30, 2003 

Revenues Interest Total revenues 
Expenditures Debt service 

Actual GAAP Basis 

SCHEDULE 4c 

$ 400 $ 400 $ 204 400 400 204 
191,003 191,003 191,003 191,003 190,927 190,927 

Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative) 
$ (196) (196) 
76 76 

(Deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (190,603) (190,603) (190,723) (120) Other financing sources (uses) Transfers in 190,305 190,305 190,405 
Net change in fund balance 

100 (298) (298) (318) (20) 
Fund balance at beginning of year 50,227 50,227 50,227 
Fund balance at end of year $ 49,92..=.=_.~9 $ 49,929 $ 49,909 $ (20) 

See accompanying note to budgetary comparison schedules 
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CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget and Actual Nonmajor Governmental Fund - Refunding Bonds, Series 2002 Year Ended September 30, 2003 

Revenues Interest Miscellaneous Total revenues Expenditures Debt service Total expenditures 

SCHEDULE 4d 

Actual GAAP Basis 
Variance with Final Budget Positive (Negative) 

$ 16,070 $ 16,070 $ 8,897 $ (7,173) 573 573 16.070 
702.776 702.776 702,776 702,776 702,895 702,895 (119) (119) 

(Deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (686,706) (686,706) (693,425) (6,719) Other financing sources (uses) Transfers in Transfer out Total other financing sources (uses) 
Net change in fund balance 

712,328 
712,328 

712,328 (400,000) 312,328 
712,328 (400,000) 312,328 

25,622 (374,378) (381,097) Fund balance at beginning of year 1,086,791 1,086,791 1.086.791 (6,719) 
Fund balance at end of year $1,112,413 $ 712,413 $ 705,694 $ (6,719) 

See accompanying note to budgetary comparison schedules 
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CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA 
Schedule of Compensation Paid Board Members For the Year Ended September 30, 2003 

SCHEDULE 5 

The City of Minden, Louisiana paid the following amounts for compensation to the mayor and members of the City Council as of September 30, 2003: 
Mayor - Bill Robertson City Council Theron Winzer Fayrine A. Keunon-Gilbert Magaline Quarles Drew White Michael Roy Benny Gray Doug Frye 

Car Compensation Allowance 51,450 $ 
8,700 8,700 8,700 4,500 4,200 4,500 4,200 

1,200 1,200 1,200 500 700 500 700 
94,950 $ 6.000 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 



H 
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CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards For the Year Ended September 30, 2003 Note 1. Basis of Presentation 
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of the municipality and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133,Audits of States, Local Governments, andNon-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the financial statements. 



 



MICHAEL W. WISE, C.RA. CARLOS E. MARTIN, C.P.A. DAVID W. TINSLEY, C.RA. KRISTINE H. COLE, C.P.A. dENNIFER C. SMITH, C.P.A. 

JAMIESON, WISE & MARTIN A PROFESSIONALACCOUNTING CORPORATION 601 MAIN STREET P.O. BOX 897 MtNDEN, LOUISIANA 71058-0897 (318) 377-3171 FAX (318) 377-3177 WM. PEARCE JAMIESON, C.P.A.(1991 MEMBERS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS SOCt ET'/OF LOUISIANA CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
The Honorable Bill Robertson, Mayor, and the Members of the Board of Aldermen City of Minden, Louisiana 
We have audited the financial statements of the City of Minden, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated February 23, 2004. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Comptroller General of the United States. 
Compliance 

issued by the 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City. of Minden, Louisiana's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported to management of City of Minden, Louisiana in a separate letter dated February 23, 2004. 
nternal Control Over Financial Renortin~ In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Minden, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control over Emancial reporting that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control 



components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal con~ol over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be a material weakness. However, we noted other matters involving the internal con~ol over financial reporting that we have reported to management of City of Minden, Louisiana in a separate letter dated February 23, 2004. This report is intended solely for the information of management, others within the organization, City Council, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and the Legislative Auditor of the State of Louisiana and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Minden, Louisiana February 23, 2004 
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MICHAEL W. WISE, C.P.A. CARLOS E. MARTIN, C.RA. DAVID W. TINSLE~. C.F~A. KRISTtNE H. COLE. C.P.A. JENNIFER C. SMITH, C.RA. 

JAMIESON, WISE & MARTIN A PROFESSIONAl ACCOUNTING CORPORATION 601 MAIN STREET P.O. BOX 897 MINDEN, LOUISIANA 71058-0897 (318) 377-3171 FAX (318) 377-3177 WM. PEARCE JAMIESON, C.P.A.(1991) MEMBERS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS SOCIETY OF LOUISIANA CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 
REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

The Honorable Bill Robertson, Mayor, and the Members of the Board of Aldermen City of Minden, Louisiana 
Compliance 
We have audited the requirements described Comoliance Suonlemen 

compliance of City of Minden, Louisiana, with the types of compliance in the U. S. Office of Management and Bud=et (OMB~ Circular A-133 that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2003. City of Minden, Louisiana's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of f'mdings and questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of City of Minden, Louisiana's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on City of Minden, Louisiana's compliance based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments. and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Minden, Louisiana's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on City of Minden, Louisiana's compliance with those requirements. 



In our opInion, City of Minden, Louisiana complied, In all material respeots, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2003. 
The management of City of Minden, Louisiana, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In plannIng and performing our audit, we considered City of Minden, Louisiana's internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program In order to determIne our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on the internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. 
Our consideration of the Internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the Internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely perind by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the organization, City Council, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Minden, Louisiana February 23, 2004 
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MICHAEL W. WISE, C.RA. CARLOS E. MARTIN, C.RA. DAVID W. "RNSLEY. C.P.A. KRISTINE H. COLE, C.P.A. JENNIFER C. SMITH, C.P.A. 

JAMIESON, WISE & MARTIN A PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTING CORPORATION 601 MAIN STREET P.O. BOX 897 MINDEN, LOUISIANA 71058-0897 (318) 377-3171 FAX (318) 377-3177 
MANAGEMENT LETTER 

The Honorable Bill Robertson, Mayor, and the Members of the Board of Aldermen City of Minden, Louisiana 

WM. PFJd:ICE JAMIESON, C.P,A.(1991) MEMBERS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS SOCIETY OF LOUISIANA CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Minden, Louisiana, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2003, and have issued our report thereon dated February 23, 2004. 
In connection with our audit, we made certain observations relative to the records maintained, the accounting procedures in effect, and the overall administration of the financial affairs of the City. As a supplement to the reports, we submit for your consideration pertaining to the following observations which did not meet the criteria of being material to the general purpose financial statements. Compliance and internal control items considered non-material to general purpose financial statements. 
2003-1 Public bid law According to L.R.S. 38:2212, materials and supplies purchases of seven thousand five hundred dollars or more, but less than fifteen thousand dollars shall be made by obtaining not less than three telephone or facsimile quotations. During the audit, we noted purchases where management provided no evidence that bids were obtained as required for the following: ~ $140,889 was paid to a vendor for tree trimming services. ~ $20,054 was paid for aviation gasoline and $22,177 in jet fuel. 
2003-2 Deposits in excess of adeauate security According to L.R.S. 39:1225, adequate security is to be pledged to the City for deposits in excess of the federal depository insurance. As of September 30, 2003, the City had approximately $780,962 in deposits with a local bank, which were not adequately secured. 
2003-3 During our audit, we reviewed the budget process of the City. LSA-R.S. 39:1310 concerns budgetary control. The City is to amend the budget in accordance with R.S. 39 whenever there is a variance of 5% (five percent) or more between actual and remaining projections as compared to budget amounts for revenues, expenditures or beginning fund balance. For the year ended September 30, 2003, the City had adopted and amended the budget in an effort to be in compliance with the Local Government Budget 



Laws, however, during our audit we noted that actual total expenditures in the Sales Tax Fund and Sales Tax- Sewerage Fund exceeded budgeted expenditures by more than 5%. 
In addition, we noted one amendment to the enterprise fund budget to increase the line item for construction expense by $300,000, however, the actual amendment to the budget to accomplish the increase effected two additional line items accounts. The amendments to these additional accounts were not adopted in an open meeting, as required by LRS 39:1310. 2003-4 t in 
We have identified areas for improving the police department internal controls over ticket accountability. These areas have been discussed with the City through our exit conference and a list of areas which need improvement has been provided to the department heads. 
2003-5 During 2003, there was an increase in recreational activities/events held by the City resulting in an increase in revenues being collected by the recreation department. Due to the large percentage of collections being received in the form of cash, we have identified areas for improving the internal controls over collections within the recreation department. These areas have been discussed with the City through our exit conference and a list of areas which need improvement has been provided to the department heads. 
2003-6 
We have identified areas of improving internal controls over collections of payments for gas and supply sales through the airport. Procedures for preferential pricing should be prohibited. In addition, we recommend that a cooperative endeavor agreement be executed to detail the aviation fuel sales agreement between the City and the US Forestry Department. These areas have been discussed with the City through our exit conference and a list of areas which need improvement has been provided to the department heads. 
2003-7 
We have identified areas of improving internal controls of finaneial accounting and maintaining appropriate documentation. In addition, we recommend that all proceedings of meetings and fmancial statement be published as required by LSA RS 43:171. These areas have been discussed with the City through our exit conference and a list of areas which need improvement has been provided to the department heads. 
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Prior audit findings have been addressed by the City management unless included in the above comments. Should you have any questions concerning the contents of this letter or if we can be of any additional service, please contact us at your convenience. 
Very truly yours, 
Jamieson, Wise & Martin February 23, 2004 
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CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS For the Year Ended September 30, 2003 
We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the City of Minden, Louisiana as of and for the year ended September 30, 2003. As a result of our audit, we have issued an unqualified opinion on the general purpose financial statements. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are material to the financial statements of the City of Minden, Louisiana. 
We have issued an unqualified opinion on the compliance requirements as described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to the City's major program. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of material noncompliance with the compliance requirements or audit objectives of the City's major program. The dollar threshold of $300,000 was used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs. For the year ended September 30, 2003, the City of Minden, Louisiana had one major program for funds received from the Federal Aviation Administration, to improve safety areas at the Minden airport. Grant identification #'s: 3-22-0032-03, 3-22-0032-04. (CFDA #20.106) 
The City of Minden, Louisiana was not required to perform single audits in the previous two years, therefore, the City of Minden, Louisiana did not qualify as a low-risk auditee for the current year's audit. 

The results of our auditing procedures of the general purpose financial statements as of and for the year ended September 30, 2003, of the City of Minden, Louisiana, disclosed no items that are required to be reported in accordance with GAGAS. 
The results of our auditing procedures of the general purpose financial statements as of and for the year ended September 30, 2003, of the City of Minden, Louisiana, disclosed no items that are required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. 
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CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN For the Year Ended September 30, 2003 

As stated in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, in connection with the audit of the general purpose financial statements as of and for the year ended September 30, 2003, of the City of Minden, Louisiana, there were no items required to be reported in accordance with GAGAS. 
As stated in the Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, in connection with the audit of the general purpose financial statements as of and for the year ended September 30, 2003, of the City of Minden, Louisiana, there were no items required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. 
See management's response attached 



Bill Robemon Mayor " 520 Broadway ~ P.O. Box 580 ~ Minden, Louisiana 71058 ~ Telephone (318) 377-2144 ~ Fax (318) 371-4200 
March 25, 2004 
Mr. Mike Wise Jamieson, Wise and Martin P. O. Box 897 Minden, LA 71058-0897 Dear Mr. Wise Regarding your Management Letter for the Fiscal Year ended September 30, 2003, I offer the following comments: 
(1) We consider tree trimming to be a service. Since we contend that this item is a service, we feel we are in compliance with applicable statutes. (2) From this point forward, we will follow bid guidelines for the purchase of fuel at the City of Minden Airport. 2003-2 Det)osits in excess ofadeouate securiW 

2003-3 
2003-4 

Procedures will be established to make certain that adequate security is pledged to the City for all deposits. I will instruct the City Clerk and the Assistant City Clerk to verify that these procedures are followed at all times. 
We understand that we have to be within the five percent variance and any change to the budget will be adopted at an open meeting. 
I have discussed with Chief T. C. Bloxom the needed improvements in the Police Department internal controls over ticket accountability. These changes will be implemented. 

Claude L. Johnson, Jr. Oty C/erk - Treasurer Charles Mlnlflekl Oty Attorney Theron W~zer Counc/lman - D/str/ct A 
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2003-5 
2003-6 

Page 2 Mr. Mike Wise 
Improvements in the internal comrols over collections within the Recreation Department will be established and implemented. 
We will implemem proper controls over collections ofpaymems at the City of Minden Airport, including the purchase of a cash register to better track receipts of case Also, a cooperative endeavor agreement will be executed detailing the aviation fuel sales agreement between the City and the U.S. Forestry Department. 2003-7 Ma~ The Main Street Manager has been advised of the needed changes and reeommendations. All recommendations will be followed. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
Mayor, CityofMinden bdb 
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CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS For the Year Ended September 30, 2003 

The prior year audit findings for the year ended September 30, 2002, were as follows 
Section I - Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements 
In connection with the audit of the general purpose f'mancial statements as of and for the year ended September 30, 2002, of the City of Minden, Louisiana, there were no items required to be reported in accordance with GAGAS. 
Section H - Internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal Awards 
In connection with the audit of the general purpose financial statements as of and for the year ended September 30, 2002, of the City of Minden, Louisiana, there wei'e no items required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. 
Section HI - Management Letter 
2002-1 Public Bid Law Finding: No quotes obtained for the purchase of materials and supplies whose cost exceeds $7,500 but is less than $15,000. 
Current Status: During the audit for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003, quotes were obtained for several purchases where required, however, noted items which were not bid in accordance with the public bid law. 
2002-2 Public Bid Law Finding: Bids not obtained for public work projects whose cost exceeded $100,000 Current status: During the audit for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003, noted one project which was not let for bid as required by L.R.S. 38:2212. 
2002-3 Finding: City had unsecured deposits with a local bank. Bank balances as of September 30, 2002 exceeded federal depository insurance and market value of pledged securities. Current status: City had unsecured deposits during September 30, 2003 
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CITY OF MINDEN, LOUISIANA SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS For the Year Ended September 30, 2003 
2002-4 Budget deficit Finding: For the year ended September 30, 2002, a budget deficit of $134,453 was budgeted in the Sales Tax Fund - Sewerage System. 
Current status: No budget deficits were budgeted during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003 
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